Town of Melbourne Beach

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING May 15, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. COMMUNITY CENTER - 509 OCEAN AVENUE

MINUTES

Commission Members:

Mayor Alison Dennington Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie Commissioner Corey Runte Commissioner Marivi Walker Commissioner Adam Meyer

Staff Members:

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro
Town Attorney Ryan Knight
Town Clerk Amber Brown

1. Call to Order

Mayor Alison Dennington called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. Roll Call

Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted a roll call

Commission Members Present

Mayor Alison Dennington Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie Commissioner Corey Runte

Commission Members Absent

Commissioner Marivi Walker Commissioner Adam Meyer

Staff Members Present

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro Town Attorney Ryan Knight Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr Building Official Robert Bitgood Fire Chief Gavin Brown Police Chief Tim Zander Public Works Director Tom Davis Town Clerk Amber Brown

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence

Mayor Alison Dennington led the Pledge of Allegiance.

4. Meeting Agenda – Additions/Deletions/Changes – 3:17

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve the agenda as presented; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

5. Consent Agenda – 3:46

- A. Approval of the Regular Town Commission Meeting action minutes April 17, 2024
- B. Appointment of Edilene Johansson as an Alternate to the Parks Board

<u>Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda; Commissioner Corey Runte seconded; Motion carried 3-0.</u>

6. Proclamations/Presentations/Awards

A. Presentation of a proclamation recognizing May 18th through May 24th, 2024 as National Safe Boating Week – 5:20

A member of the Coast Guard spoke about the Coast Guard being a group of volunteers, they provide educational classes, etc, which helps to fund them. Coast Guard and the Town have the same mission, to keep people safe and to have fun in a safe way.

Commissioner Corey Runte thanked the Coast Guard and told the people of the Town to take advantage of the services they provide.

Mayor Alison Dennington read the proclamation that declared May 18th to May 24th, 2024 National Safe Boating Week in the Town of Melbourne Beach and encouraged citizens to acquire skills/knowledge to practice safe boating.

B. Presentation by Town Attorney Ryan Knight – 12:19

Town Attorney Ryan Knight explained the difference between legislative hearings and quasi-judicial hearings. Touched on the fact that legislative hearings create general rules or policies for a group of people, and spoke in more detail about quasi-judicial hearings, which are applied to more specific situations. He said you're essentially taking an ordinance or regulation and applying it to one property, one person or one development instead of a group.

Mayor Alison Dennington mentioned there will be a workshop to deal with issues about short term rentals and Town Attorney Ryan Knight said it would mostly cover enforcement.

7. Finance/Budget Report – 26:24

Commissioner Corey Runte made a motion to approve the finance report as presented; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

8. Department and Board/Committee Reports - 27:38

A. Public Works Department

Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about receiving an email about tree trimming and wants Public Works Director Tom Davis to look into the timing for that.

Public Works Director Tom Davis said they already trimmed the trees. He also said the sign at Loggerhead Park has been removed and a new sign has arrived.

Mayor Alison Dennington asked about the broken sign at Loggerhead Park.

B. Building Department

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked about the reasoning for removing the oak trees on Sunset Blvd.

Building Official Robert Bitgood said the permit was applied for by the owner as the trees were posing a threat to a wall. Also says they are a small municipality so he is the one doing the inspecting, and the town manager is made aware of any conflict of interest.

Mayor Alison Dennington asked about how conflicts of interest are addressed.

C. Code Enforcement

Commissioner Corey Runte acknowledges there's only two active cases/violations, the fewest number he's ever seen.

Building Official Robert Bitgood says they have been doing a good job keeping an eye on everything, making sure it is resolved. Believes it would be beneficial to have body cams.

Mayor Alison Dennington mentioned getting body cameras for code inspectors. Also asked some questions about enforcement for short term rentals.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked if the cameras would come out of the building fund.

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro said it would come out of the building department, also they call the officers if there is an issue.

D. Fire Department

Mayor Alison Dennington mentioned there were two fires in town, but everything is okay. She mentioned that a boat was purchased with donations to the Firefighters Association. Also asked about paying firefighters instead of having them all be volunteers.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked if they dropped the idea of renovating the pier.

Fire Chief Gavin Brown said they did drop renovating the pier, but are having an engineer do a sketch for a garage. He said that volunteer firefighters are in decline, places are even having trouble finding paid firefighters, might need to investigate paying them, hoping they could look at the SAFER grant.

E. Police Department

Police Chief Tim Zander said they have accomplished a lot in his first six weeks, specifically writing tickets, and made some clarifications about parking.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked for clarification about certain numbers.

F. Town Clerk

Town Clerk Amber Brown said Computer Experts were working on the equipment, but it will be working for the next meeting. Said the cost for the business license portal was included in the BSA software. Said the election packet was about half done, just updating some dates.

Mayor Alison Dennington mentioned businesses being able to do more online and asked about the cost of that. Also asked about when the election packet would be ready.

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items) – 57:32

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.

Frank LaGrassa – 412 First Ave – Frank Lagrassa held his comment until the parking restrictions agenda item.

10. Public Hearings/Special Orders - 59:30

A. Ordinance 2024-02 Repealing Ordinance 2023-02 Second Kitchens - Second reading

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, REPEALING ORDINANCE 2023-02 IN ITS ENTIRETY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve Ordinance 2024-02 repealing Ordinance 2023-02 Second Kitchens as presented second and final reading; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

11. Unfinished Business

A. Consideration of replacing all of the curbing on Riverside Dr as part of the repaving project – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro – 1:00:48

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro said to consider how much curbing needs to be replaced in order to get the cost. They are using a county contract which is the lowest price for the process. Suggests doing it all regardless of the condition so it won't have to be done again.

Mayor Alison Dennington says it's \$500,000 and expressed her questions and concerns with the lack of information.

Recess from 7:20 p.m. until 7:25 p.m.

Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted a roll call - 1:17:50

Commission Members Present

Mayor Alison Dennington Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie Commissioner Corey Runte

Commission Members Absent

Commissioner Marivi Walker Commissioner Adam Meyer

Staff Members Present

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro Town Attorney Ryan Knight Building Official Robert Bitgood Police Chief Tim Zander Public Works Director Tom Davis Town Clerk Amber Brown

The Commission discussed their issues about curbing replacement and getting more information.

Failed for a lack of motion

12. New Business

A. Consideration of changes to 7A-50 Off-Street Parking – 1:23:30

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about parking requirements for businesses.

Building Official Robert Bitgood said there are places to park that would be walkable from the businesses, so requiring less parking might make sense.

Mayor Alison Dennington said she is against it. Fears self regulation by the businesses. Suggests waiting to make changes until specific businesses say they need the changes.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie spoke about offloading requirements and also said she was opposed. Said to send this back to Planning and Zoning for them to review suggestions.

Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about the importance of salvaging what little green space there is left in the Town and helping save the lagoon. Believes a blanket change is not the way to go but thinks some updates are appropriate. Suggests putting in golf cart parking to save space.

Mark McBride – 310 Second Ave – Spoke about decorum and not being in favor of anything that develops the Town more.

John Butler – 312 Avenue A – Spoke about being uncomfortable with development and had a few questions.

Frank LaGrassa – 412 First – Spoke about not wanting to see anything else on Ocean Ave. **Mike Krajic – 2103 Neptune** – Said a prayer and spoke about how businesses should have to apply for a variance.

Failed for a lack of motion

B. Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds – First reading – 2:15:35

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX "A" OF THE TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING SECTION 7A-57 RELATING TO UTILITY SHEDS AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Town Attorney Ryan Knight spoke about adding a clause to grandfather sheds in. The changes being made are that the sheds may not be larger than 160 sq. ft., 11.6 feet in height, foundation is being struck through, also clarifies that it should be a 2 ft. setback.

Matt Harris – 314 Avenue B – Asked what the changes are.

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to table Item B under New Business Ordinance 2024-01 Sheds; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion failed for a lack of quorum 2-0 with Mayor Alison Dennington abstaining from the vote.

Town Clerk Amber Brown reminded Mayor Alison Dennington to submit a Form 8B.

C. Ordinance 2024-03 Camping Prohibited – First reading 2:21:35

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, CREATING CHAPTER 73-20, "CAMPING PROHIBITED," IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Alison Dennington wanted clarification about why the Town would allow camping for 72 hours, fears this will invite short term renters to camp in people's yards.

Town Attorney Ryan Knight said he left the 72 hours in so that people's kids could camp in their backyard, but it can be removed.

Commissioner Corey Runte made a motion to approve this Ordinance with one correction of zero hours allowed versus the 72 hours currently in the language;

<u>Commissioner Corey Runte amended his motion to approve as presented with Section B removing all words after Town limits; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.</u>

D. Ordinance 2024-04 Prohibit Smoking – First reading – 2:27:10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, CREATING CHAPTER 73, ARTICLE VI, "PARKS AND BEACHES" IN THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN TOWN PARKS AND PUBLIC BEACHES; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Town Attorney Ryan Knight spoke about vaping and e-cigarettes and banning them in public parks, but not being able to for public beaches. Also spoke about fines typically being from \$25-\$100.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked if marijuana should be included in the language for this and the Town Attorney said that would need to wait.

Commissioner Corey Runte made a motion to approve Ordinance 2024-04 as presented with one change adding the restriction of vaping, adding the word vaping to section 73-60 within the public parks section; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

E. Consideration of transcription services for the Town Clerk – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro- 2:33:05

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro discussed outsourcing the transcription services. The individual would charge \$20 per hour of their work, and would take typically 3 times the length of the meeting to complete. Funds would come from the Mayor's donated salary.

Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie asked if it would be by contract.

Mayor Alison Dennington asked about using Al transcription services.

Town Clerk Amber Brown said no one could recommend a good AI service.

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to approve transcription services for the Town Clerk with the following conditions: 1. Not to exceed an amount of roughly 3-4 thousand dollars whatever the factual amount is on record from the Mayor's donation 2. Satisfactory review and execution of the

contract presented by the service to the Town Manager and only the Town Manager; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

F. Consideration of purchasing a truck for the Building Department – 2:40:31

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about the need for having a truck to carry ladders etc, so proposed selling the 2012 Camry then buy a truck.

Mayor Alison Dennington asked about the mileage on the Camry which was 144,000.

Building Official Robert Bitgood said it would be about \$4,000-5,000 and the money would come out of the building funds so it is not a cost to the citizens.

<u>Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie made a motion to approve the request for the building department truck</u> for the funds to come out of the enterprise fund of the building department offset by the sale of the Camry; Commissioner Corey Runte seconded; Motion carried 3-0.

- 13. Administrative Reports 2:53:10
 - A. Town Attorney
 - B. Town Manager

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro said she got a letter from the Town of Indialantic that they are not participating/contributing to the lifeguard contract.

Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about inspections and who does them when he is gone.

- 14. Commission Reports
- 15. Task List
- 16. Public Comment
- 17. Adjournment

Commissioner Corey Runte moved to adjourn; Vice Mayor Sherri Quarrie seconded, Motion carried 3-0.

Meeting adjourned at 9:08 p.m.

Alison Dennington

Mayor

ATTEST:

Rachel Pembrook (Oct 23, 2024 15:43 EDT

Rachel Pembrook Transcriptionist